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William Steel and Crater Lake

Ina counti'y schoolhouse 1in Kansas in 1870 a boy unwrapped the newspaper which con-
tained his lunch and casually scanned the rumpled colummns as he munched his sandwich and
cookies., After a moment his tousled head moved into the paper and his jaw slowed to a
stop. . He saw something which intrigued him. The boy was William Gladstone Steel. What
he saw in the newspaper was a story about "a lake in the top of a mountain." The lake was
'far'avay across the great plains, across the Great Divide, deep 1‘n the Cascade mountains .
of Oregon, and the boy was just a boy in school, but he said to himself that some day he
would see that lake--and he did.

Two years later, probably feeling something of the lure of the West which stirred in
" the boy, the Steel family moved to Oregon, and young William asked everyone he met about
the lake in the mountain. For seven years he found no one who had even heard of it, and
not until two years after that did he find a man who had seen it. -But there were folks in
Oregon who Inew about the lake and the fact that it had been "discovered™ three times:
first on June 12, 1853 when a miner named John Wesley Hillman accidentally rode up to its
brim on a mule and named it Deep Blue Lake; next in 1862 when a party of six miners, led
by Chauncey Nye, came upon it and cut the name to Blue ‘Jlake; and for the last "official"
time in 1865 by & gi'oup of soldiers from Fort Klamath, who called the place Lake Majesty..
The name which stuck--Crater Lake--was the idea of a party of visitors from Jacksonville,
Oregon, who climbed up there in 1869. ‘ k

In 1885-~13 years after his family came to Oregon--William Steel saw. for the first
time his lake inside the mountain. Having heard of Yellowstone National Park,established
the year he came to Oregon, William Steel, during the first few breathless moments  he
stood at the rim of the deep volcanic lake, came to the sudden, certain conclusion that
this, too, must be a national park. He went back to his home im Portland, where he was in
the Postal Service, and got 250 important people to sign a petition to President Grover
Cleveland, asking that ten townships, including Crater lake, be taken out. of the public
domain for safe keeping from claim stakers. President Cleveland granted  the request, and
William Steel concentrated on establishment of the park.

For 17 years this determined man from the big and vigorous Northwest commuted between
Oregon and the Nation's capital, spent his own money and gave most of his time to the ful-
fillment of his dream.. On May 22, 1902--32 years after he reed about it in the newspaper
around his lunch--the Congress made William Steel's lake in the top of a mountain Crater
Lake National Park. That great conservationist, President Theodore Roosevelt, signed the
bill and the growing "system® of national j)arl'rs was increased to six, all in the West.
William Steel was Crater lake park's second superintendent, a position he resigned to be-
come U. S. Commissioner for the park,. Upon his death in 1934 his daughter was named to
succeed him. : ' . '

A description of Crater Lake's unusual natural characteristics will be the subject of
Enow Your Service No. 11. '
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Crater lake's Hatural Characteristics

Crater lake, the reagson for Crater Lake National Park, is the deepest lake in the
Western Hmu:lsphsere. It has neither inlet nor outlet, yet its water is as fresh as a moun-
tain spring. This water comes from rain and snow. The annual snow fall around the lake
covers trees and buildings and communication lines and piles up e wonderland for skiers.
In 1886 the depth of the lake was measured as 1,996 feet. There is no evidence of a fluc-
tuation of more than 13 Teet. The average seasonal fluctuation is two feet. It is high
in the summer, full of melted snow; and lower in the winter when the Cascade world is fro-
zen. There is no record of the ‘lake itself ever having frozen over, though its elevation
above the sea is 6,154 feet.

The lake lies in the grave of an extinct volcano. The original cone, which was des-
troyed to form the lake bed, probably rose between 5,000 and 6,000 feet above the present
rim.  This destruction of the towering cone was, geologieally speaking, a recent event--—-
probably no more - than 5,000 years ago. The overall area inside the jagged rim is 27 square -
miles, and the area-of the lake's surface 1s 21 square miles. This creates the unigue sit-
uation of a body of water 21 square miles in area and 1,996 feet deep kept full by precip-
itation. on a 27—square niie watershed.

There were no fish in Crat.er lake until it was stocked with rainbow trout :in 1889.
Since then the National Park Service has added 2,000,000 rainbow trout and silver-side sal-
mon. - Despite the fact there 1is neither inlet nor outlet these fish spawn and smltiply. In
the case of the silver-side salmon this is extraordinary, for it 1is an accepted fact that
the happy spawning grmmds of this species are up flowing streams which run into the sea.
After four years of limnologicel research at Crater Lake Dr, Arthur D. Hasler and D. S.
Farper, instructors in the Department of zoology at the University of Wisconsin, found -
"complete evidence that the salmon spawn in Crater lake." In a letter to ‘Superintendent
E. P. Leavitt of Crater Lake park on January 31, 1841 Dr. Hasler stated his case: *There
have been no salmon planted in Crater Lake for “the: last three years, yet there is an
abundance “of one-—yea.r and two-year old fish as proved by the scales taken from them. To
verify this finding I have sent the scales to other scientists who have corroborated my
readings." , :

The first two of Crater Lake's three "discoverers" named it Deep Blue Lale and Blue
Iake, and those who see it now get the same reaction. Actually, the lake 1is colorless,
refracting the sunlight and reflecting the sky. When the sky is blue, the lake is blue.
If the sky is full of clouds, -the lake is full of ¢louds. If the sunset blazes, the lake
blazes. Whep the lake is still and glassy the lava rim, 1lifting from 500 to 2,000 feet
above the water, turns upside down, and the two islands---Wizard, the volcanle cone, and
Phantom Ship, the twisted lava pile«-look down at thenselves in amzement.
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Wind Cave-~The Park Idea Moves Rastward

Three hundred million years before President Calvin Coolidge made the Black Hills
of South Dakota familiar to  the newsreel customers the region was neighborhood talk
in the grunts and squeals of such prehistoric characters as three-toed horses, St.
Georgian alligators and armor-plated rhinoceroses. All these citizens were plowed
‘under in the turn of geological events, but new occupants took up residence when the
restless Sioux Indians climbed over the Alleghenies and headed west looking for a
happier hunting ground.  When. ‘the Sioux reached what is now southwest South Dakota .
they saw and liked the Black Hills and claimed them in their range.

One thing pretty special to the Sioux aside from the plentiful game and other
Indians to fight, was a little hole in the ground through which air whistled in and
out. To the Indians of the Great Plains this was the Home of the Four Winds, and thus
a sacred spot, closely associated. in their beliefs with the Breath of Life and the
Vital Principle. To this general legend the resourceful Sioux added one of their own:
According to Chief Joe White Bull (Pte San Hunka), nephew of the late great Sitting
Bull, the Sioux like to think that Wakan Tanka, the Great Mystery, sent the buffaloes
out through the wind crack to populate the plains with fresh meat. It was these c¢on-
victions which fired the Sioux with such enthusiasm when they defended their Hills
against the white man. ' ‘

From 1874, when George Custer's expedition found gold on French Creek, until
1886 the Black Hills bommed along, developing such citizens as Wild Bill Hickok, Dead-
wood Dick, Calamity Jane and Preacher Smith. One of the more peaceful pioneers to
come in the region was Tom Bingham. One day in 1881 while hunting deer, Bingham heard
a whistling sound in the underbrush, got off his horse, and found the small hole in
the ground leading to the Indians' Cave of the Winds. Bingham probablywas the first
white man to come on what is now Wind Cave National Park.

Local pride in the Black Hills and the Cave of the Winds spread to national rec-
ognition and in the last decade of the 19th century, considerable interest was gener-
ated in establishment of a national park. The Far West had six national parks and the
idea was moving eastward. On January 9, 1903, Congress, now more accustomed to the
national park idea, passed legislation establishing Wind Cave National Park and putting
it under the control of the Secretary of the Interior. On March 4, 1931 Congress act-
ed again, this time to extend the park's boundaries to the present area of 12,639
acres. '

£

Wind Cave itself probably is about 10 square miles in area, though not fully ex-
plored. The hole which the Indians worshipped and Tom Bingham "discovered" is 10 in-
ches in diameter and the only known natural opening. The entrace now used by visi-
tors was made by cutting 6 feet underground to a wind tunnel. The geological forma-
tions in the cave are of the unusual boxwork and frostwork types. The familiar stal-
actites and stalagmites are practically nonexistent. The rock in which the cave is
formed is perhaps 300 million years old; the cave very much ‘younger. Not all the
park's attractions are underground. Over its rolling acres run some of the finest
buffalo, antelope, elk, and deer herds in North America.
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The Origin of the Antiquities Act of 1906

Miss Cora E. Whitford and Mr. Edgar Iee Hewett, a school teacher, were married on
September 16, 1891. Three years later the young school teacher became superintendent of
the training department at the State Normal College at Greeley, Colorado. Mrs. Hewett be-
came 111 not long after, and her young husband, determined to arrest the sickness, put to-
gether a team and a buckboard and took his wife to the Valley Ranch, 26 miles east of San-
ta Fe, New Mexico. Every day when the sun was warm and healing Professor Hewett hitched up
and took his wife for a ride. They often went down Pecos Canyon to the Pecos Ruins, rem-
nants of the great pueblo community where part of the fabulous Coronado's expedition spent
the winter of 1540. Fascinated by the ruins, Hewett would leave his wife to rest in the
sunshine while he inspected the remains of the ancient village.

They came back to Valley Ranch every summer until 1898 when the young teacher became
President of New Mexico Normal University at Las Vegas, 46 miles east of the ranch and the
ruins he loved so well. He bought Valley Ranch and became a resident of the Southwest.
Now his wife could be in the sun always and he could study the ruins forever. On one trip
he went to Chaco Canyon, in the Navajo country of central New Mexico, and saw a sight that
set him off in a rage: a crew of men were excavating the exquisite ruins of Pueblo Bonita
with teams and scrapers just to see what they could find. After speaking a piece to these
fellows, he returned to Santa Fe, the Territorial capital, and put on enough pressure to
have a representative of the General Land Office go to Chaco Canyon and stop the desecra-
tion. The man had to stop it with words alone; there was no law to back him; no law to
protect any ruin from anybody. = Professor Hewett thought about this a great deal, and soon
his thoughts were heard where they could count--in the Congress.

When Ethan Allen Hitchcock of Missouri was Secretary of the Interior in the cabinet
of President Theodore Roosevelt, he got a letter from W. A. Richards, Commissioner of the
General land Office, on October 5, 1904, recommending that the Department do something
official about the preservation of "historic ruins and other objects of historic and sci-
entific interest upon the public domain." Mr. Richards told Mr. Hitchcock that the matter
"had been before (his) office for consideration for a number of years® but there had been
"considerable difficulty® in handling it "owing to the lack of information of a sufficiently
comprehensive nature." With the letter went just exactly the kind of information Mr. Rich-
ards had been looking for. It had been provided by Professor Hewett. What the professor
said in it was supplemented and backed up by such substantial authorities as Dr. J. Walter
Fewkes of the Bnreau of American Ethnology, Dr. Walter Hough of the National Museum, A. F.
Bandelier of the American Museum of Natural History and S. J. Holsinger, a special agent
for the General Land Office.

"Unquestionably®, said the report, "some of these regions are sufficlently rich in’
historic and scientific interest and scenic beauty to warrant their organization into
permanent national parks. General legislation providing for the creation and administra-
tion of such parks and providing for the excavation of ruins in the interests of science
only is urgently needed."” The report tied the loose ends together and fortified those in
the Congress who had been trying to do something about saving the historic ruins, and
other objects of historic and scientific interest throughout the land. Four bills on  the
subject were introduced in the 58th Congress, but it was the 59th thatdelivered the goods.
The bill which became known as the Antiquities Act of June 8, 1906, was S. 4698. fnow Your
Service No. 14 will interpret the Act and describe its early application.
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Application of the Antiquities Adct

The Act for the Preservation of American Antiquities, known generally as The Antiqui-
ties Act of June 8, 19806, is in four sections. The first of these prohibits the violation
of historic or prehistoric objects on lands controlled by the Governinent of the United
States; the second gives the President authority to establish national monuments by proc-
lamation; the third arranges for the granting of special permits for "reputable museums,
universities, colleges, or other recognized scientific or educational institutions" to ex-
plore and study the ruins; and the fourth section says that the Government departments in-
volved shall "make and publish from time to time uniform rules and regulations for the
purpose of carrying out the provisions of this Act."

The first national monument to be established after passage of the Antiquities Act
was Devil's Tower; the 800-foot monolith of volcanic rock in northeastern Wyoming, desig-
nated on September 24, 1906. This 1,153 acre area 1is known as the oldest national monu-
ment, though famed old Casa Grg,nde,' the prehistoric mansion at Coolidge, Arizona; was set
aside by Congress as a valuable public spot on March 2, 1889 and held national park status
from 1892 until 1918, when it became a national monument. 8Six months after the Act was
approved, and three months after Devil's Tower attained monument status, three others came
in on December 8, 1806; E1 Morro in New Mexico; and Montezume Castle and Petrified Forest
in Arizona. In 1907 followed three prehistoric dwellings of unusual interest, Chaco Can-
yon and Gila Cliff Dwellings in New Mexico, and Tonto in Arizona. Six were established in
1908 as the monument movement spread into . California with Muir Woods and P:lnnacies, and
into Colorado with the designat:lon of Wheeler National Monument, a p]ace of fantastic vol-
canic relics. :

The first "Uniform Rules and Regulations to carry out the provisions® of the? Antiqui-
ties Act were signed on December 28, 1906, by Secretary of the Interior Ethan Allen Hitch-
cock, Secretary of Agriculture James Wilson and Secretary of War William Howard Taft. At

. that time properﬂes under the supervision of all three departments were involved in the
Act's provisions, but in 1933 Franklin Roosevelt, by Executive Order, transferred all these

Agricultural and War areas to the jurisdiction of the Department of the Interior and con-
centrated them in the National Park Service. In 1933 there were 65 national monuments in
24 states and Alaska. The areas represented history, archaeology, geology, unusual fauna,
and flora and superlstive natural beauty. They ranged in size from the one-tenth of an
acre in Father Millet Cross National Monument in New York to the 2,697,590 acres | in Alas-
ka's Katmai Monument which contains the Valley of Ten Thousand Smokes., In appearance they
reached: from the Statue of Liberty's torch to Death Valley‘s land below the sea.

The Antiquities Act grew with the National Park Service. Passed for the express pur-
pPose of protecting the exquisite ruins of the Southwest, it developed to preserve Spanish
missions, old: forts, groves of big trees, historic landmarks and structures, and an ex-
panse of gypsum that looks like snow. Between 1933 and June 1941, 17 national  monuments
were established. Of the 82 national monumefts existing in June 1941, 72 were established
under the Antiquities Act and 10 were established by special acts of Congress. The monu-
ments range from Appomattox Court House, where the Coni‘edéracy quietly surrendered in Vir-
ginia, to the Badlands of South Dakota, and to mysterious old Fort Jefferson where Samugl
Mudd, the man who set the leg of John Wilkes Booth, later cleaned "yellmw jack" out of the
Dry Tortugas.
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Application of the Antiquities Adct .

The Act for the Preservation of American Antigquities, known generally as The Antiqui-
ties Act of June 8, 1906, is in four sections. The first of these prohibits the vioclation
of historic or prehistoric objects on lands controlled by the Government of the United
States; the second gives the President authority to establish national monuments by proc-
‘lamation; the third arranges for the granting of special permits for "reputable museums,
universities, colleges, or other recognized scientific or educational institutions” to ex-
plore and study the ruins; and the fourth section says that the Government departments in-
volved shall "make and publish from time to time uniform rules and regulations for the
purpose of carrying out the provisions of this Act."

The first national monument to be established after passage of the Antiquities Act
was Devil's Tower; the 800-foot monolith of volcanic rock in northeastern Wyoming, desig-
nated on September 24, 1906. This 1,153 acre area is known as the oldest national monu-
ment, though famed old Casa Grande, the prehistoric mansion at Coolidge, Arizona, was set
aside by Congress as.a valuable public spot on March 2, 1889 and held national park status
from 1892 until 1918, when it became a national monument. Six months after the Act was
approved, and three moriths after Devil's Tower. attained momment status, three others came
in on December 8, 1906; El Morro in New Mexico; and Montezuma Castle and Petrified Forest
in Arizona. In 1907 followed three prehistofiq dwellings of unusual interest, Chaco Can-.
yon and Gila Cliff Dwellings in New Mexico, and Tonto in Arizona. 8ix were established in
1908 as the monument movement spread into California with Muir Woods and Pinnacles, and
into Colorado with the desighation of Wheeler National Monument, a place of fantastic vol-
canic relies.

The first "Uniform Rules and Regulations to carry out the provisions® of the Antiqui-
ties Act were signed on December 28, 1906, by Secretary of the: Interior Ethan Allen Hitch-
cock, Secretary of Agriculture James Wilson and Secretary' of War William Howard Taft. At
that time proper'ties under the supervision of all three departments were involved in the
Act's provisions, but in 1933 Franklin Roosevelt, by Executive Order, transferred all these

Agricultural and War areas to the jurisdiction of the Department of the Interior and con-
centrated them in the National Park Service. In 1933 there were 65 national monuments in
24 states and Alaska. The areas represented history, archaeology, geology, unusual fauna,
and flors and superlative natural beauty. They ranged in size from the one-tenth of an
acre in Father Millet Cross National Monument in New York to the 2,697,590 acres in Alas-
ka's Katmal Monument which contains the Valley of Ten Thousand Smokes. In appearance they
reached from the Statue of Liberty's torch to Death Valvley"s land below the sea.

- The Antiquities Act grew with the Natioﬁa‘l Park Service. Passed for the express pur-
Pose of protecting the exquisite ruins of the Southwest, it developed to preserve Spanish
missions, old forts, groves of big trees, historic landmarks and structures, and an ex-
panse of gypsum that looks 1ike snow. Between 1933 and June 1941, 17 national monuments
were established. Of the 82 national monuments existing in June 1941; 72 were established
under the Antiquities Act and 10 were established by special acts of Congress. The monu-
ments range from Appomattox Court House, where the Confederacy quietly surrendered in Vir-
ginia, to the Badlands of South Dakota, and to mysterious old Fort Jefferson where Samuel
Mudd, the man who set the leg of John Wilkes Booth, later cleaned ®"yellow jack" out of the
Dry Tortugas. ' '
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Mesa Verde~-Prehistoric "Big Town"

Fifteen thousand years before Columbus did it the hard way, a lot of folks from
Asia were walking back and forth across a strip of land that connected what are now
Siberia and Alaska. They weren't -low-browed mumblers and grunters; they were highly
developed people who went southward from Alaska and roamed the American West 150 cen-
turies before Europeans penetrated the Black Forest. For 13,000 years these people
lived from hunting and left no marks of settlement. Then, according to Don Watson in
his exquisite book, Cliff Palace: The Story of 4n Ancient City, after watching their
breakfast run over the hill for 130 centuries, "some ancient Burbank produced corn"
and they settled down to farming. :

One of the places these early Indian tribes liked especially well was the Ameri-
can Southwest. Here they built their cliff dwellings and pueblos; here they puilt
the greatest of them all--the Cliff Palace in what is now Mesa Verde National Park in ’
the southwestern corner of Colorado. Construction of this prehistoric "Big él'own"
probably was begun as late as 1050 A.D. by a band of Indians, later called Pueblfos by
the Spaniards from the Spanish "pueblo", meaning "village". From 1050 until 1276} A.D.
the Cliff Palace was a center of Indian culture. Then came the Great Drought,ﬁ and
during the next 24 insufferable years the population of the agricultural city died or

wandered away, never to return.

The great éity'clung to its high cave in the side of the mesa through the 200
years between the drought and the coming of Columbus and Coronado; clung 200 more un-
til 1776 when Padre Escalante spent a night not far away. By 1859, when Captain J.N.
Maconb and Professor J. S. Newberry exploréd the region, the Mesa Verde (green table)
had been found and named by the Spaniards, but still no one had come upon the silent
city. In 1874 the ubiquitous W. H. Jackson almost found it, and did find and photo-
graph Two-Story House, but he went on like the others and Cliff Palace continued its
wait for the white man. ’

This wait of six centuries ended on a snowy December day in 1888. The discover-
ers were three boys--Richard and Alfred Wetherill, brothers; and their brother-in-law,
Charlie. Mason. They were riding a strange range in search of strays when suddenly
the Palace loomed through the veil of snow. At that moment, says Don Watson, "13:\ all
that vast wilderness there was no sound but the soft hiss of the snowflakes ‘anh the
throbbing of the boys' hearts." In the months and yeers immediately f'ollowing the
discovery the great dead city was: attaclned alike by sincere students and ravpnous
"pot hunters." Much of its h:lstory ‘was learned and much carted away. Through the
excitement broke a feeling that the Palace and some of the surrounding country should
be preserved in a national park.A Thc Colorado Cliff Dwellers: Soclety was organized
for just this purpose by the late Mrs. Gilbert McClurg of Colorado Springs. Other
influential groups and individuals moved into action and on June 29, 1906 Congress
brought Mesa Verde National Park to reality.
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Platt National Park--The Healing Waters
(4

When the Sulphur Springs Reservation in south-central Oklahoma became Platt Na-
tional Park on June 29, 1906, through Congressional action, the national park move-
ment reached further toward the East than at any time in the 34 years since thé es~
tablishment of Yellowstone. The eastern terminus heretofore had been Wind Cavé in
South Dakota, established on January 9, 1903. A good idea was headed in the fight
direction. 1 ‘

\

Sulphur Springs Reservation was established on July 1, 1902 to preserve a n1 iber
of cold water springs with exceptional healing properties. There are 32 large splrings
and several smaller ones, running through a wooded, rolling countryside. Eighteen of
the larger springs are classed as sulphur; six as fresh water, four as iron,! and
three as bromide.’ Because it comes out of the ground in a national park, sll of this
water is free, but folks who intend to drink prodigious amounts had better take 1t up
with the doctor. : _ i

. \

The water in Platt National Park has these virtues because Nature i:hought‘ that
was a good place to have them bubble up, but the inevitable Indian legend has 1J: an-
other way. In his The Book of the National Parks, Robert Sterling Yard tells ;lt the
way Colonel R. A. Sneed, for years the Superintendent of Platt, passed it on to \him.
It has to do with a small determined band of Delaware Indians, who wandered all‘ the
way from Alabama and finally found a resting place with the Chickasaws in sout.hern
Oklahoma. N ‘

\

Big Chief of the Delawares was the late great Wahpanuclm, among whose most treas—
ured possessions was a lovely daughter named Deerface. Many young braves sought‘ her
hand, but two handsome Delawares stood out among them. The old chief decided | that
these two should leap down 200 feet from what is now Bromide Cliff into the st‘:ream
below, and that the survivor would wed Deerface and succeed him as Chief of the lf)ela—
wares. They jumped, but neither survived; then Deerface jumped; and an image of' her
face, they say, can be seen to this day on one of the rocks of the cliff. 0ld Wahpan-
ucka just stood there and cried and his tears filtered down through the cliff q-ocks
and so purified the water of Bromide and Medicine Springs below that forever after
they will be "possessed with remedial qualities which make it a cure for all humn
ailments." ‘

: 1

Platt National Park is so named in honor of the late Orville Hitchcock P:Elatt,
U. S. Senator from Connecticut for 26 years, who was active in the passage of thi es-
tablishing legislation. Congress acted favorably on the matter largely as a result
of the efforts of the people of southern Oklahoma who thought their Sulphur prf'ings
Reservation should have national recognition. Senator Platt was a lover of the}out-—
doors and & keen student of Indisn affairs. He had & superb physique which enabled
him to establish an enviable record in school athletics. The Platt Amendment, which
governed Cuban-American relations between 1901 and 1934, also bears his name. He was
frequently considered as a vice presidential possibility, but his personal pol:ltical
ambitions went no further than the "Gentleman from Connecticut." :

Bibllography: }

The Book of the Natiomal Parks by Robert Sterling Yard; Charles Scribner's Sons, New York.
Dictionary of American Biography, Vol. XV; edited by Dumas Malone; Charles Scr:lbn‘br's
Sons, New York.
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J. Horace McFarland--Savior of Beauty

In Harrisburg, Pa., there is aman who knows more about roses than anybody in the
world. He also knows a lot about photography and printing, and prints a great many
beautiful books in his Mount Pleasant Press. - He pPlays the organ in the Methodist
Church, and he organized the Harrisburg May Festival. He once led the fight against
commercialization of Niagara Falls with such determined vigor that President Taft [got
letters on the subject from his own mother and wife. He was called into the West by
John Muir to help that great man labor in vain to save Hetch-Hetchy. He loves beauty,
and thinks mankind should protect natural beauty and add to it by making pretty things
himself. He was 82 years old on September 24, 1941, and just as alert and aetive then
as he was when he won apersonal fight for protection and beautification of the BHarris-
burg river front in the 19t.h century. ) : i i

His name 1is J. (for Jms) Horace McFarland. To people who really. know a&mt L
national parks this name is linked with Muir and Mather. Horace MNcFarland ste up
from local protector of river banks to a savier of national beauty in Springfield, :
Ohio, in 1901, when he was elected president of the new American Ieague for Civic Im-
provement Associations. Three years later, at the St. Louts Exposition, this le
joined with the American Park and Outdoor Art Association to form the American Le
for Civic Improvement, and Dr. McFarland was named president of that. This le
became the American Civic Association (now the American Planning and Civic Ass 1a-
‘tion) of which Dr. McFarland was president for 21 years.

As head of the increasingly-potent American Civic Association Dr, McFarland was
in a strategic position to conduct his “Crusade against Ugliness”. With his lantern .
slides and his convincing arguments, he lectured in over 500 cities. = In 1908 when, '
much to the concern of McFarland and some others, the national parks were increasing
in mmber without any semblance of central administration or proteetive policy, Pres-
ident Theodore Roosevelt called a Conservation Congress of Governors in Washington.
Dr. McFarland, though no governor, was invited. .When the proceedings of the Congress
were printed there were 180,000 words about conservation of such resources as’ oil and
timber and minerals, and 2,000 words about the qcnservation of natural beauty. These
words had been spoken by Dr. llcFarland and one other men who thought beauty wuﬂ an

- asset of real importame——ﬁovernor Charles Evans Hughes of New York. ‘

By 1911 the American Civie Association had become important enough to have P+es—
ident Taft end Secretary of the Interior Walter 1. Fisher of Illinois as speakers at
its annual convention. Both came because they were interested in the Association's
efforts to have the national parks organized into a system administered by om: Faﬁn
al agency established for that purpose. The Asspciation which attained this objec-
tive in 1916 with the establishment of the National Park Service, has continued| to

foster park ideals and to champion the National Park Service.

Bibliography: Romance of the Fatiomal Parks, by wiss Harlean Jamses, MNount plessant Press,
Harrisburg, Pa.
Who's Who in America; A. N. Marquis Co., Chicago, “Illinois.
. The World 4lmenac; Vlorld!elegrql, New York, New York.

Other Source: Conversations with Miss James.
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J. Horace McFarland--Savior of Beauty

In Harrisburg, Pa., there is aman who knows more about roses than anybody in |the
world.. He also knows a lot about photography and printing, and prints a great
beautiful beoks in his Mount Pleasant Press. He plays the organ in the uethoqist
Church, and he organized the Harrisburg May Festival. He once led the fight against
commercialization of Niagara Falls with such determined vigor that President Taft Bot
letters on the subject from his own mother and wife. He was called into the West by

John Muir to help thet great man labor in vain to save Hetch-Hetchy. He loves bcajty,
and thinks mankind should protect natural beauty and add to it by making pretty things
himself.  He was 82 years old on September 24, 1941, and just as alert and active ﬁMn
as he was when he won apersonal fight for protect:lon and beautification of the Harris-
burg river front in the 19th century.

His name is J. (for James) Horace McFarland. To people who reelly know about
national parks this name is linked with Mulr and Mather. Horace McFarland stepped up
from local protector of river banks to a savior of national beduty in Springfield,
Ohio, in 1901, when he was elected president of the new American Ieague for Civic |Im-
provement Assoclations. Three years latery; at the St. lLouis Exposition,‘ this Ieague

' Joined with the American Park and Outdoor Art Association to form the American Le
for Civic Improvement, and Dr. McFarland was nemed president of that. This 1Ie

became the American Civic Assocfation (now the American Planning and Civic Associa- E

’tion) of which Dr. McFarland was president for 21 years. ‘ ) ‘

o
As head of the increasingly-potent American Civie Association Dr. MeFarland \wa.s
in a strategic position to conduct his "Crusade against Ugliness”. With his lantern
slides and his convincing arguments, he lectured in over 500 cities. In 1908 w*nen,
much to the concern of McFarland and some others, the national parks were mcreaq‘ing
in nusber without any semblance of central administration or protective policy, Pres-
ident Theodore Roosevelt called a (}«mservaiion Congress of Governors in Washington.
Dr. McFarland, though no governor, was invited. When the proceedings of the Congress
were printed there were 180,000 words about conservation of such resources as oil jand
timber and minerals, and 2,000 words about the eomservation of natural beauty. These
‘words had been spoken by Dr. McFarland and one other man who thought beauty was | an
asset of real importance--Governor Charles Evans nghes of New York.

By 1911 the Americen Civic Association had become important enough to have -
ident Taft and Secretary of the Interior Walter L. Fisher of Illinois as speakers at
its annual convention. Both came because they. were interested in the  Association's
efforts to have the national parks organized into 8 system administered by ome:Feder-
al agency established for that purpose. The Association which attained this cbjeec-
tive in 1916 with the establishment of the National Park Service, has continued to

foster park ideals and to ehampion the National Park Service.

Bibliography: KRomance of the National Parks, by Miss Barlean James, MNount Plessant Press,
narrtsburg, Pa. . :
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Glacier ¥ational Park - 1910

When Glacier National Park was established on May 11, 1910, it had come a |long
way since 1670 when Charles II of England gave it and all other lands watered | by
streams flowing into Hudson Bay to Prince Rupert and 17 of his noble bedfellows | for
whatever they could bleed out of it. This gesture on the part of this profligate
king created the fabulous Hudson's Bay Company which monopolized the natural resour-
ces of that part of the world for nearly 200 years. But the “Shining Mountains” in
what is now Glacier park marked one place in that part of the world which even | the
traders and trappers did not enter ~- and live. All men who came too ¢lose to | the
snowy peaks encountered the Blackfoot Indians and wisely went on, if able, leaving
the region to the jealous care of those tenacious people.

Among the better knowns who approached the area were Meriwether lewis and William
(not George Rogers) Clark, two Virginia boys who really got around. In 1806 (they
were yvithin 40 miles of the present park while on their transeontinental tour of 1p03-
06. But, like the trappers and traders, they moved on; and, according to the POSt
acceptable records, not until 1846 did a white man Penetrate the area. He was hngh
Monroe, known to' the Blackfoot as Rising Wolf; son of an English army officer, hus—
band of a squaw; hunter, trapper, hero. About 20 years later, American traders, \mo—
tivated by the 1loot lust, finally poured in among the Blackfoot tribes with their
booze and trinkets. The beautiful country festered with vandalism and debauchery. | The
monopoly of the Hudson's Bay Company began to fall apart.

As in the history of all the national parks, word of the region's great natural
beauty filtered through the muck and reached the ears of men who wanted to save and
not destroy. Prof. Raphael Pumpelly, George Bird Grimnell, Dr. Lyman Beecher Sperry
and others came to explore. There also were the railroaders; and in 1891 the steel

_prongs of the Great Northern topped Marias Pass. Grinnell was drawn back to | the
"Shining Mountains” again and again. In 1901, Century magazine, that thoughtful JPm--
nal which gave voice to the sensitive pen of John Muir when it cried out to save| Yo-
semite, carried a piece by Dr. Grinnell which called national attention to the |re-
gilon's glory and the need for 1its protection. The ball began to roll; and nine years
later President Taft signed the bill which added Glacier National Park to the growing
list.

Today Glacier's 1,537 square miles along the Canadian border innorthwest Montana
contain what many consider the most spectacular mountain country in the United States.
Snuggling around the peaks are more than 60 glaciers and 200 lakes. Its wildlife in-
cludes bear, moose, wapiti, and the amazing bighorn sheep. Its high meadows flame
with wild flowers. Across the border in Canada lies the Waterton Lakes area, which
joined with Glacier, forms the Waterton-Glacier International Peace Park. This 1is| the
Good Neighbor attitude in the flésh. It was established in 1932 by Presidential proc-
lamation, as authorized by the U. 8. Congress and the Parliament of Canada. '

Bivliography: - The Encyclofeedia Britannica, 14th edition, Vol. II} the Encyclopaedia Britanni-
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